
Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board 
Wednesday December 16, 2015; 4:30pm – 5:00 pm 

Coltivare 235 S. Cayuga Street  
 

RECEPTION TO FOLLOW 5:00 – 6:00PM  
 
 
AGENDA                    Start Time   

 November STPB Meeting Minutes              4:30 
o ACTION – Approve Meeting Minutes 

 Privilege of the Floor                 
o Limit of 3 minutes per person for members of the public to address the board   

 Chair’s REPORT – Sue Perlgut              4:35 

 Staff REPORT – Tom Knipe                4:40 

 CVB / Chamber REPORT – Bruce Stoff and Jennifer Tavares        4:45 

 STPB Year End Round Up and Look Forward – Goals, Accomplishments, Survey  4:50 
                    END  5:00     
 
Agenda Packet 
1. November 2015 draft STPB meeting minutes 
2. CVB December Update 
3. 2015 STPB Goals 
4. 2015 STPB Committee Descriptions 
5. 2015 Year‐End Survey Form (for members to fill out) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
MISSION: The Strategic Tourism Planning Board is charged by the 
Tompkins County Legislature with providing oversight and strategic 
direction for tourism initiatives that promote economic development and 
enhance the quality of life in Tompkins County. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

STPB Agenda Packet - 12/16/15 
Page 1



Date:  November 18, 2015  1 
Time:  3:00-4:20pm 2 
Location:          History Center  3 
 4 
Attendees: 5 

Name  Representation 
Christy Agnese E Ithaca College 
Sue Perlgut  Arts-Culture 
Josh Friedman  Arts-Culture 
John Spence  CAP, Non-Voting 
Bruce Stoff  CVB, Non-Voting 
Dwight Mengel A Transportation, Non-Voting 
Gary Ferguson  DIA, Non-Voting 
Jennifer Tavares  Chamber, Non-Voting 
Martha Armstrong  TCAD, Non-Voting 
Will Burbank  TC Legislature, Non-Voting 
Beverly Baker  Associate Member 
Carol Kammen  Associate Member 
Jon Reis  Associate Member 
Tom Knipe  Staff 
Jennifer Turner  Staff 
 7 

Also in attendance: Rod Howe, Director of the Tompkins County History Center 8 
 9 
Meeting Agenda 10 

1) Welcome – Rod Howe, Director of the History Center   11 
2) October STPB Meeting Minutes 12 
3) Privilege of the Floor 13 
4) Chair’s Report 14 
5) 2015 Strategic Tourism Implementation Funding 15 
6) Tourism Partner Awards – Kelli Cartmill 16 
7) Heritage Tourism Implementation Plan Presentation – Anne Gossen 17 
8) Branding and Communications Committee REPORT – Josh Friedman 18 
9) Tompkins County Room Tax Law – REPORT - Tom Knipe 19 
10) CVB Committee REPORT – Bruce Stoff  20 
 21 
The meeting was called to order at 3:00 PM. 22 
 23 
October 2015 STPB meeting minutes were approved with no changes. 24 
 25 
Welcome – Sue Perlgut introduced Rod Howe, Director of the History Center.  26 
 27 
History Center Presentation - Rod Howe provided background on the History Center, noting that he 28 
considers the center to be a generation to generation educational research center. The 8 Square School 29 
House, built in 1827, and this summer’s third year archeology camp are noted highlights of the center. 30 
Discussions for relocation of the History Center and the possibility of a new name are underway. Rod went 31 
on to report on the current cemetery exhibit, the upcoming exhibit in celebration of Historic Ithaca’s 50 year 32 
anniversary, and exhibit on Toys. He went on report on the grant awarded by the Legacy Foundation that 33 
that will be used in collaboration with the Dorothy Cotton Institute, for collecting a broader set of histories to 34 
archive. Efforts to create an ambassadors program that would relate to heritage tourism, aiming to educate 35 
volunteers that would go through the program and learn about historic cultural organizations over a 6-9 36 
month period were discussed.  37 
 38 
October 2015 STPB meeting minutes were approved with no changes. 39 
 40 

Name  Representation 
Anne Kellerman  At-Large 
Ian Golden  Recreation 
Ethan Ash  Arts-Culture 
John Gutenberger  Cornell 
Lynnette Scofield E Lodging 
Kelli Cartmill  Lodging 
Rita Rosenberg  Agriculture 
David Blake   At-Large 
Andy Zepp E At-Large 
Stephen Nunley  At-Large 
Steve Hugo  At-Large 
Ken Jupiter E At-Large 
Mike Mellor  At-Large 
Anne Gossen  Arts-Culture 
Sue Stafford  TC3 

STPB Agenda Packet - 12/16/15 
Page 2



Chair’s Report – Sue reported that the slate of officers for 2016 will include Anne Gossen, as Chair, and 41 
Christy Agnese as Vice Chair. She went on to inform members of the survey being sent out regarding 42 
committee membership.   43 
 44 
Strategic Tourism Implementation Fund – Tom made the motion to recommend the draft resolution for 45 
the Strategic Tourism Implementation Fund, seconded by David Blake. The Strategic Tourism 46 
Implementation Fund Draft Resolution was approved by unanimous vote by present members. 47 
 48 
Tourism Partner Award – Kelli Cartmill reported on the nominations for the Tourism Partner Awards, 49 
noting the NY State High School Swimming and Diving Championship event at Ithaca College that was 50 
nominated last year, and the nomination to Cornell College of Agriculture and Life Sciences for the Global 51 
Food Security Conference event this year. Both events were noted as having creating a significant impact 52 
in the economy. Kelli Cartmill made the recommendation to present both awards through the Legislature, 53 
seconded by Mike Mellor. The Tourism Partner Awards recommendation was approved by unanimous 54 
vote. 55 
 56 
Heritage Tourism Implementation Plan Presentation - Anne Gossen opened the presentation by giving 57 
thanks to Ian Golden, John Spence, Andy Zepp, and Rod Howe for their work on the taskforce. She went 58 
on to provide background on the Heritage Taskforce, which through Heritage Tourism, aims to enrich 59 
visitors experience, and deepen the appreciation, while enhancing the local experience. Because the 60 
definition for heritage tourism has the potential to be all encompassing their taskforce, it was noted that 61 
there group narrowed down the scope by excluded contemporary and visual arts, active outdoor recreation, 62 
and by de-emphasizes agriculture. The taskforce intends to protect historical buildings, and showcase the 63 
richness of the area, with a vision that aims to create a vital heritage tourism presence in Tompkins County, 64 
highlighting the rich historical, natural and cultural offerings to draw more visitors and enhance the 65 
experience of visitors here on their own agenda.  66 
 67 
Tom Knipe reported that the draft plan has a two year scope through 2017, with early discussions that 68 
started with Stuart Stein. It was noted that ongoing leadership development will be provided by the History 69 
center, although their organization will not be involved in the funding efforts. Tom made note that the 70 
adoption of plan is not a commitment to funding specific projects, and that the public comment deadline is 71 
December 17; a vote is tentatively schedule for the meeting in January. 72 
 73 
Members suggested ways of branding local businesses through the implementation of historical aspects of 74 
the area. To view the entire presentation please visit: 75 
http://www.tompkinscountyny.gov/files/tourism/Heritage%20Tourism%20Implementation%20Plan_10_13_F76 
ull%20Draft.pdf 77 
 78 
Branding and Communications Committee Report – Josh Friedman reported that their committee has been 79 
working on finishing the brand statement, and hopes to finalize a draft to bring to the Board in January, or as early as 80 
December. Members discussed the possibility of renaming the STPB. 81 
 82 
Tompkins County Room Tax Law – Tom Knipe reported that the Tompkins County Room tax law was adopted in 83 
1986, and updated in 1989, noting the significant changes in the market with Airbnb and other types of lodging 84 
including glamping now part of the market. He further reported on the direct conversations with AirBnB related to 85 
providing a voluntary collection agreement that have Airbnb collect and remit the tax on behalf of hosts in Tompkins 86 
County. Members discussed potential impacts on campsites, one-time hosts, and current room tax exemptions, and 87 
also asked about ways of informing private homeowners. The Tompkins County Attorney and Finance Director have 88 
recommended minor changes to the law to. Members suggested creating a threshold, and creating an easy form for 89 
hosts to use. The Board was not asked to vote; it will go to EDC. Feedback is welcome. 90 
 91 
CVB Committee REPORT – Bruce Stoff reported that the hotel room night stays were at a record $174.00 a night 92 
in October and that revenue was at 4.1%. The CVB has been meeting with Downtown Ithaca and CAP regarding a 93 
possible relocation. A job opening for marketing position is available; members were encouraged to spread the 94 
word.  95 
 96 

STPB Agenda Packet - 12/16/15 
Page 3

http://www.tompkinscountyny.gov/files/tourism/Heritage%20Tourism%20Implementation%20Plan_10_13_Full%20Draft.pdf
http://www.tompkinscountyny.gov/files/tourism/Heritage%20Tourism%20Implementation%20Plan_10_13_Full%20Draft.pdf


Update on CVB Director – Jennifer Tavares provided an overview on the timeline for transition on the director 97 
position, noting the possibility for title, and or role change in order to broaden the candidate pool. Discussions have 98 
taken place in creating a search committee, and members of the STPB were asked if they have interest in joining 99 
that committee in January. 100 
 101 
Announcements – Sue Stafford reported that tomorrow 100 BOCES students will be hosted by Coltivare  102 
To take culinary classes and includes the wine marketing program. She invited members of the Board to attend 103 
Tasteful Sensations at Coltivare on December 2.  Jon Spence reported that the ACOD application process has 104 
started, noting that it is a two-part process with a final due date of January 15. 105 
 106 
With no further business, the meeting adjourned at 4:21pm. 107 
 108 
 109 
Respectfully Submitted, 110 
Jennifer Turner, Administrative Assistant 111 
Tompkins County Planning Department 112 
 113 
Next Meeting Scheduled 114 
Wednesday January 20, 2015  115 

STPB Agenda Packet - 12/16/15 
Page 4



 
CVB December 2015 Update 
 
Transition 
Day-to-day operations are proceeding smoothly as Bruce transitions out of the office. Jennifer 
and Bruce have been working through a lengthy handoff list of state and local entities and 
projects. We will be asking for a little bit of patience in January as the CVB will be short-staffed. 
 
Budget 
We will be closing the year in very good shape in terms of overall spending. Though we still 
have improvements to make in forecasting wages and salary, the department managers did a 
great job this year balancing budget lines to bring us in on target.  
 
Downtown Visitor Center  
A new lease is in process with Community Arts Partnership to keep us in the Downtown Visitor 
Center through 2016. The cost increase is modest and will not have major budget implications. 
 
Round 2 REDC Visitor Services Tech Grant 
At this writing, it appears that the CVB was not awarded a $30,000 REDC grant to continue our 
visitor services tech initiative. If this is the case, we will explore other funding options. The 
program will allow visitor services staff to text with visitors and share digital information in real 
time. To our knowledge, no CVB in the state or nation can currently do this. 
 
IthacaEvents.com 
We have signed a contract with tech firm Localist to create the backbone for a new 
IthacaEvents.com. Localist is the firm Cornell uses for its event calendar. We should be able to 
link both calendars and many theatre calendars moving forward, making IthacaEvents.com the 
undisputed top events site in the County. 
 
County CVB Contract 
The Legislature’s Economic Development Committee approved a new contract with the 
Chamber to run the CVB through 2020. The five-year contract is structured as a three-year deal, 
followed by a built-in review with optional two-year renewal. The full legislature was expected 
to approve the agreement Dec. 15. 
 
October STR Report 
The county’s hotels reported strong results through October with rate, occupancy, and revenue 
all up. Year-to-date, we’re looking at 4% growth in revenue county-wide, which is good but shy 
of our goal of 5%. 
 

STPB Agenda Packet - 12/16/15 
Page 5



2015 STPB Goals 
3/12/15 Draft – adopted March, 2015 

Tompkins	County	Strategic	Tourism	
Planning	Board	(STPB)	Goals	

What	goals	should	the	STPB	establish	for	itself	as	a	board,	for	2015?	
 

Approved board goals for 2015 are listed first, followed by possible goals. Possible goals will be 
revisited in July and one or more may be added to the list of approved board goals for the year at 
that time. Goals are separated into Action-Oriented Goals and Policy-Driven Goals. (revised version 
3/13/15) 

2015	Action‐Oriented	Goals	
A. Complete the Agriculinary Tourism Implementation Plan by May 2015 and create a 

tangible program by the end of the year. (Lead: STPB Agriculinary Tourism Task Force) 
B. Convene a meeting facility task force and report to the board by June 2015. (Lead: STPB 

Meeting and Conference Facility Task Force) 
C. Complete program modifications and revised ACOD grant guidelines by mid-year 2015. 

(Lead: CAP, ACOD Program Review Committee) 
D. Complete the Heritage Tourism Implementation Plan by September 2015. (Lead: STPB 

Heritage Tourism Task Force) 
E. Fund and ensure appropriate scope and representation on client committee for a new 

comprehensive visitor profile study for Tompkins County. A contract with a qualified 
research firm to be in place by the end of 2015, with the study itself to begin in late 2015 
or early 2016. (Leads:  CVB, STPB P&E Committee, Study Client Committee) 

F. Develop a concerted approach to enhancing the demographic diversity of the STPB and 
associate membership, to coincide with recruitment of new STPB members which will 
take place in September 2015.(Lead: STPB Membership & Bylaws Committee) 

G. Create a communications plan for the Tompkins County Tourism Program. This will be 
done in two phases.  First, the STPB will work to develop an “elevator speech” for the 
board itself in spring 2015. Second, work to develop a communications plan for the 
Tourism Program as a whole will begin by the end of 2015, with the final 
communications plan to be completed sometime in 2016. 

RECOMMENDED	Policy‐Driven	Goals	
H. Identify a threshold of tourism program investment that triggers a more thorough review 

of an organization or project, and a framework for assessing risk for new initiatives, to 
follow up on recommendations of the Ticket Center and Wine Center reports. Timing: by 
June 2015. (Lead: P&E Committee) 

STPB Agenda Packet - 12/16/15 
Page 6



2015 STPB Goals 
3/12/15 Draft – adopted March, 2015 

I. Support the CVB as they envision what a visitor center looks like in Ithaca, NY. A Progress 
Report on the Visitor Center Tech Outreach Initiative will be delivered in January 2016. 
(Lead: CVB) 

 

The following Possible Goals will be revisited in June or July, 2015 for possible inclusion in STPB goals for the 
year.  Staff and board member capacity to achieve the board goals in 2015 will be the primary consideration 
in determining whether any of these possible goals are added to the list of approved goals.  The possible 
action-oriented goals are listed in order of priority for consideration. 

POSSIBLE	Action‐Oriented	Goals	
1. Convene a Higher Education Tourism Working Group. 
2. Monitor the program evaluation planning efforts of all programs funded by Tompkins 

County room tax using the program evaluation planning model recently used by the 
CVB. 

3. Convene an Outdoor Recreation Tourism Task Force 

POSSIBLE	Policy‐Driven	Goals	
4. Review board makeup for adequate recreation representation.  
5. Examine Arts and Culture support in other communities to understand our community’s 

support for the arts relative to other communities and our goals.  
6. Critically examine the tourism program policy around purely generating new tourism 

through our investments versus starting with the assumption that we need to build our 
tourism products with local support and investment first in order to have successful 
community-based tourism. 

7. Examine the possibilities for increasing revenues for the Tompkins County Tourism 
Program from a variety of sources 

REMOVED	from	list	of	Possible	2015	Goals	
 Conduct a detailed review of tourism program funding by sector and report on the 

level/quality of alignment of funding and priorities.  
o Reason for removal: staff-driven, ongoing. 

 Use a new “Chmura” study to analyze different sectors’ role in the tourism industry, 
including recreation.  

o Reason for removal: inherent in the study process itself; and doing the study is 
already a recommended goal.  

 Encourage each grant committee to review guidelines to ensure they align with the 2020 
Strategic Tourism Plan and are funding the most strategic projects. 

o Reason for removal: staff driven, ongoing. 

STPB Agenda Packet - 12/16/15 
Page 7



 

1 | P a g e  
STPB Committee Descriptions, 1/16/15 

Tompkins	County	Strategic	Tourism	Planning	Board	(STPB)	
Committee	Descriptions	
Updated	January,	2015	
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“ The standing committees shall be the Nominating Committee, the 

Membership & Bylaws Committee and the Budget Committee. 

Other committees, composed of at least two voting members of the 

STPB, may be created by the STPB Chair.” 

 

“The committees shall perform such duties as may be delegated to them by the 

establishing motion or by the Chair. Committees other than standing committees 

may select such advisors from outside the membership as they may deem 

2015 Committees of the STPB 2015 Chair (proposed) 
# STPB 
Members 

# Total 
Members 

Budget Christy Agnese 6 6 
Community Celebrations Carol Kammen 2 5 
Executive Sue Perlgut 3 3 
Festivals TBD 3 6 
Membership and Bylaws Lynnette Scofield 3 3 
Nominating TBD in fall 2015  3 3 
Planning and Evaluation Ken Jupiter  6 12 
Combined Tourism Grant  
Review  

Steve Hugo 4 5 

Tourism Partner Awards TBD 1 3 
Strategic Tourism 
Implementation  Grant Review 

TBD  2+  6 

 
2015 STPB Working Groups    

Agriculinary Tourism 
Ethan Ash & Rita 
Rosenberg‐Barber 

4‐5 10+ 

Heritage Tourism  Anne Gossen 4 10+ 
Tourism – Higher Education TBD 2+ 5‐8 

2015 Affiliated Committees with STPB 
ACOD Grant Review Committee John Spence (admin) 3 6 
Beautification, Signage and 
Public Art 

Jennifer Tavares (admin) 2 9+ 

Marketing Advisory Bruce Stoff (admin) 4+ ? 
Tourism Capital Grant Review 
Committee 

Martha Armstrong (admin) 2+ 6+ 

STPB Agenda Packet - 12/16/15 
Page 8



 

2 | P a g e  
STPB Committee Descriptions, 1/16/15 

necessary to perform their tasks. Committees may only be abolished by the entity 

that creates them. Committee chairs are appointed by the STPB Chair, except the 

Nominating Committee chair who is chosen by vote of Nominating Committee 

members.” 

‐ STPB Bylaws, Article Six, Section One 

STPB	Standing	Committees	

Budget	Committee		
The Budget Committee has at least four voting members (typically five), and is responsible for reviewing 
room occupancy tax revenues and projections, evaluating budget proposals, and drafting annual 
Tourism Program budget recommendations with Tompkins County staff support. 
 
The budget committee meets five or six times per year, with most of the work taking place in April, May 
and June. This includes one four‐hour meeting at the end of May during which program administrators 
and committee chairs present their budget requests for the following year. Budget committee members 
should be fluent in analyzing budget proposals, and possess a strong awareness of the overarching goals 
and structure of the Tompkins County Tourism Program. 

Membership	and	Bylaws	Committee	
The Membership & Bylaws Committee consists of at least three voting members of the STPB and 
recruits and recommends new STPB members and associate members. They also pursue board 
development initiatives and recommend revisions to bylaws as needed. The committee typically meets 
between three and six times per year, and the most significant period of work is in October and 
November during new member recruitment. Committee members should demonstrate enthusiasm for 
promoting effective board function and recruiting qualified and diverse community members to serve 
on the STPB. 

Nominating	Committee	
The Nominating Committee has at least three voting members. It is appointed annually by vote of the 
STPB membership and its sole responsibility is to present a slate of officers for the next year no later 
than the last regular meeting of each year. A member other than a prospective officer serves as chair of 
the Nominating Committee. 

Grant	Review	Committees	

“Tourism grant programs will have grant review committees consisting of at least 

two voting members and will be responsible for reviewing grant proposals and 

developing funding recommendations based on criteria established by the STPB.” 

‐ STPB Bylaws, Article Six, Section Two 

Community	Celebrations	Committee	
Celebrations Grants are intended to help communities within Tompkins County celebrate historic or 
cultural events or people. There are two grant cycles each year and committee members review 
applications and recommend awards once in March and again in October.  There is little business 

STPB Agenda Packet - 12/16/15 
Page 9



 

3 | P a g e  
STPB Committee Descriptions, 1/16/15 

between review sessions except when revisions to the application guidelines are underway or if 
something unexpected occurs, which has not been often. The committee chair speaks at applicant 
workshop sessions. Many people attending these workshops are interested in obtaining information 
about Celebration Grants and many grantees that start out with a small celebration grant (the highest 
amount that may be granted is $2,000) go on to create stunning community events that have helped 
create the vibrant celebratory community we now enjoy. 
 
The committee has kept the definitions of “celebration” and “community” as loose as possible in order 
to allow people to apply for support for traditional patterns of gatherings (such as Old Home Days) and 
to be open to emerging events that reflect new thinking, communities, and aspirations such as Dragon 
Boat races, Latino Heritage Month, Trumansburg Winter Festival, Juneteenth, Lunar New Year Festival, 
etc. Committee members evaluate grant applicants based on cultural, historic and community value; 
quality of application; ability to deliver and reflection of the values of diversity and sustainability. 
Community Celebrations are not required to generate tourism. 
 
The time commitment depends upon the number of applications received. An estimate might be four to 
five hours of application review and a two hour committee meeting, twice a year. The desired skills for 
committee members are an interest in and knowledge of the county; an open mindedness about new 
proposals; and a sense of compromise and fairness.  Serving on the committee is always joyful because 
committee members do their best to promote events and learn about the ways that people within the 
county seek to reflect its past and present, its diversity and that which makes us one community. 

Tourism	Marketing	and	Advertising	Grant	Review	Committee	(now	combined	with	Tourism	
Project/New	Tourism	Initiative)	
The Tourism Marketing and Advertising Grant Review Committee works with Tourism Project and New 
Tourism Initiative Grants to provide up to 50% of out‐of‐county marketing dollars to support the overall 
success of tourism projects, both those that apply for these other tourism grants and those that apply 
independently to the Tourism Marketing and Advertising Grant Program. They use set of evaluation 
criteria which helps to shorten the process, assure fairness and start members off with a common 
language. They also make sure that these funds compliment rather than work at cross purposes with the 
CVB so that we achieve the strongest message possible.  
 
The committee meets between two and four times a year, usually in the first week of March and the 
first week of November. Members of this committee read between twenty‐five and forty grant 
applications, score them, and help make grant award recommendations to the STPB. Reading time is 
perhaps 10‐20 hours per grant cycle. Members must have the ability to evaluate a project’s budget, 
marketing strategy, likelihood of successful implementation, fit with strategic tourism plan and potential 
tourism value. 

Tourism	Project	and	New	Tourism	Initiative	Grant	Review	Committee	(now	combined	with	
Tourism	Marketing	and	Advertising)	
These grants are awarded for events and projects likely to motivate many visitors to stay overnight in 
Tompkins County hotels and bed and breakfasts, as well as for projects that support implementation of 
the County’s strategic tourism plan and where tourism benefits may accrue over time. New Tourism 
Initiatives are projects that have been in existence for less than three years. Review committee 
members should expect to spend about one hour per application for reading, contemplation and 
research. It helps if committee members have directly experienced the events and projects that have 
received grants in the past to gain a sense of their success in attracting and serving visitors. Committee 
members often spend extra time for internet research on certain new initiatives. In all 20‐30 hours is 

STPB Agenda Packet - 12/16/15 
Page 10



 

4 | P a g e  
STPB Committee Descriptions, 1/16/15 

needed during the month following the spring application deadline. Sometimes there is a smaller fall 
grant round; sometimes not. Each committee meeting generally lasts two hours (four hours total for 
both programs) to discuss the applications and reach a consensus on funding recommendations. 
 
Committee members should have good evaluation and negotiation skills. Members need to attend grant 
review meetings with their scoring rubrics filled out and ready to discuss the applications based on how 
well each responds to the evaluation criteria. The committee currently consists of five voting members 
of the STPB, and may add one or two associate non‐voting members to contribute additional opinions 
and expertise.  

Tourism	Capital	Grant	Committee	
The Tourism Capital Grant Committee usually reviews between four and eight applications annually. The 
review now takes place in the spring so the committee would read and meet in late March/early April. 
Projects include feasibility studies and actual capital project up to $7 million in construction value, 
though usually smaller and including exhibits as well as complete new buildings and renovations. 
 
TCAD assembles the review committee for the Tourism Capital Grants, and invites one or two members 
from the STPB and one member of the Legislature to serve on the committee. TCAD selects the 
remainder of the review committee mostly from its board for their experience in major expansion and 
development projects, which are similar in scale and complexity to major Tourism Capital Grant 
projects. Desired skills including an ability to evaluate: 

 An organization's financials, business plan, and marketing strategy,  
 How successful the organization is likely to be at implementing the proposed capital 

investment and  
 The potential tourism value of the project. 

Arts	and	Culture	Organizational	Development	Grant	Committee	
A panel staffed by the CAP Executive Director, and consisting of the members of the Strategic Tourism 
Planning Board who occupy the designated Arts and Culture seats, at least one community member, and 
at least one member of the Tompkins County Legislature meets once a year to review applications, 
annual reports, and organizational health assessments completed by an independent consultant. This 
panel makes grant recommendations to the Strategic Tourism Planning Board for approval. Occasionally, 
a second meeting is required to provide feedback on grant guidelines. Overall, the time commitment is 
not large. 

Strategic	Tourism	Implementation	Grant	Review	Committee	
A Strategic Tourism Implementation Review Committee will review, score and rank proposals and 
recommend awards to the STPB.  The purpose of this one‐time grant funding opportunity is to directly 
implement the recently adopted strategic tourism plan based on objective evaluation criteria. Final 
decisions regarding grant awards will be made by the Tompkins County Legislature. The chair of the 
STPB appoints review committee members. The size of the IRC will be between five and eight members. 
Committee membership will consist of: 

 At least two members of the Planning & Evaluation Committee of the STPB, 
 At least one member of the Tourism Capital Grant review committee, 
 At least one member of the New Tourism Initiative/Tourism Project Grant review committee, 

and 
 At least one member of the Marketing and Advertising Grant review committee. 

 

STPB Agenda Packet - 12/16/15 
Page 11



 

5 | P a g e  
STPB Committee Descriptions, 1/16/15 

In any case, a majority of review committee members shall consist of voting STPB members, but not all 
IRC members need be STPB members. Potential review committee members will be asked to disclose 
their organizational ties in order to limit conflicts of interest. 

Special	Committees	of	the	STPB	

Executive	Committee	
Executive Committee membership consists of STPB officers and chairs of the Budget, Planning and 
Evaluation, and Marketing Advisory Committees, and occasionally past‐chairs. The committee meets on 
an as‐needed basis to provide support to STPB officers on STPB policy and leadership issues. 

Planning	and	Evaluation	Committee	
The Planning and Evaluation Committee is tasked with developing and updating the Tompkins County 
Strategic Tourism Plan and monitoring, encouraging, and supporting its implementation. The committee 
also supports the program evaluation efforts of County staff by providing guidance and feedback on 
evaluation processes and metrics. The committee also periodically helps oversee the work of outside 
planning and evaluation consultants. Workload varies significantly year‐to‐year; members should expect 
to meet on average four to six times per year, and many members of this committee take on extra 
duties outside of meetings such as reviewing and commenting on draft reports, conducting focus groups 
and interviews, and writing summaries. 

Festivals	Committee	
A special budget line and this new committee were established in 2011 to guide the development of the 
Tompkins Festivals Program. Events and festivals have become an important part of the Tourism 
Program, and have been proliferating rapidly county‐wide with a lack of overall rational guidance. 
Consequently, the STPB established a special committee to help oversee festival activities so that they 
can be a more effective component of the Tourism Program. The responsibility for organizing and 
directing the program has been contracted out to the DIA because of its in‐house staff capabilities and 
lengthy experience. 
 
The committee's primary, and perhaps its sole purpose, is to review and guide the foundation‐building 
work of the DIA festivals staff as it prepares the guidelines, and the informational/educational activities 
that will enhance the sustainability and tourism impact of the many festival activities that take place in 
the county. Some, but not all, of the county festivals receive financial support from the Tourism 
Program, and those that do are required to align their efforts with the established guidelines. Festivals 
that do not receive tourism grants can also seek assistance from the program. The DIA prepares 
appropriate materials and rules that the Festivals Committee reviews before they are promulgated. The 
committee, however, is not charged with reviewing STPB grant proposals; that is the responsibility of 
other committees. It solely a policy‐making and policy‐review committee intended to help guide the 
contracted DIA staff. 
 
This is intended to be a small committee composed of people who have a special interest in festivals. 
There were three members in 2012. Membership can be enlarged if an STPB member has a special 
interest in joining the committee, and non‐STPB members are welcome. No special knowledge or skills 
are necessary for participation. The committee meets on an irregular schedule, not more than two or 
three times a year, primarily when there is a need to review a product or proposal. 

STPB Agenda Packet - 12/16/15 
Page 12



 

6 | P a g e  
STPB Committee Descriptions, 1/16/15 

Tourism	Partner	Award	Committee	
The Tourism Partner Award Committee is responsible for recruiting and reviewing nominations once or 
twice a year for Tourism Partner Awards.  Up to four awards are made each year by the Tompkins 
County Legislature to individuals or organizations in Tompkins County who are not professional meeting 
planners and who have brought in over 400 room nights to the County through their efforts to organize 
meetings or events here. In 2012, the committee consisted of one STPB member (who also chaired the 
committee), the County Senior Planner / Tourism Coordinator and the CVB’s director of group sales. 
New members from the STPB are welcome. The time commitment to serve is minimal – one or two 
short meetings a year. 

Other	Special	STPB	Committees		
The following special tourism working groups will be convened in 2014 to support implementation of 

the 2020 Strategic Tourism Plan. These working groups will be made up of at least two voting STPB 

members, plus outside experts/partners in the field. The initial charge of each of these committees is 

established by the STPB Planning and Evaluation Committee. 

 Ag & Culinary Tourism Working Group 

 Heritage Tourism Working Group 

 Tourism – Higher Education Working Group 

These committees do not currently exist, but some may be formed in the future to focus for a limited 
time period on helping develop fine‐grained strategies to implement certain focus areas in the strategic 
tourism plan: 

 Sustainability Tourism Task Force 

 Outdoor Recreation / Adventure Tourism Task Force 

 Sports Tourism Committee (Sports Council?) 

Advisory	Committees	Affiliated	with	the	STPB	

Marketing	Advisory	Committee	
The Marketing Advisory Committee is primarily an advisory committee to the CVB. The group consists of 
both STPB members and non‐STPB members who have some expertise in the area. Typically they meet 
about 6 times a year. The committee reviews the CVB’s annual marketing plan and approves it before it 
goes to the STPB. They also comment on other special programs or promotions that the CVB may be 
considering as well as updates on the visitor guide. In general the committee gets to give more focused 
input from the board and from outside the board that is often not possible in meetings of the full STPB 
due to time constraints. 

Beautification	Committee	
There’s an old adage in the tourism industry that ‘tourism begins with beautification and signage.’ It’s 
the same as inviting someone to your home.  You tidy up a bit, put out some flowers and then you are 
hospitable to them.  In addition, they need to be able to find you! 
 
The Beautification Committee is composed of concerned citizens and public officials interested in 
Tompkins County and Ithaca being an attractive and pleasing tourist destination as well as an attractive 
and pleasing place in which to live. Time commitment is minimal. The committee meets monthly from 
September through April to provide input on planting policies, proposals and designs. They do not 

STPB Agenda Packet - 12/16/15 
Page 13



 

7 | P a g e  
STPB Committee Descriptions, 1/16/15 

normally meet during the planting and blooming seasons or in December. It is useful to have an 
appreciation of flowers and public plantings and even some knowledge and interest in gardening and 
horticulture but one does not need professional experience to be a productive member of the 
committee. Members also provide support by linking to various organizations and communities 
throughout the county and by helping to find resources when needed. It is important to have 
representation from rural and urban areas.   
 
Currently Tompkins County contracts with the Chamber of Commerce to administer the Beautification, 
Signage and Public Art Program. In turn the Chamber contracts with Cooperative Extension and the 
Downtown Ithaca Alliance to provide beautification services. Historically, the committee has 
concentrated on beautification but it is expected that they will play a greater role in public art and 
signage beginning in 2013, as these areas are identified as priorities in the 2020 Strategic Tourism Plan. 
The committee provides input as requested to the program administrators on the budget and annual 
work plan for their fit with the overall goals of the program. 

STPB Agenda Packet - 12/16/15 
Page 14


	ADP8729.tmp
	Attendees:
	Also in attendance: Rod Howe, Director of the Tompkins County History Center
	Meeting Agenda




